
City of North Miami Beach 
Community Redevelopment Agency  

 
 
 
 
 

Community Redevelopment Agency Board of Commissioners: 
 

   Chairman George Vallejo 
     Commissioner Anthony DeFillipo 

    Commissioner Phyllis S. Smith 
   Commissioner Beth E. Spiegel 

Commissioner Frantz Pierre 
      Commissioner Barbara Kramer 
    Commissioner Marlen Martell 

 
 
Date:
  

                  February 27th, 2014 

Time:
 

                  6:00 PM   

Location:
   17011 NE 19th Avenue, North Miami Beach, Florida 33162 

    2nd Floor Council Chambers, City Hall 

 

 
AGENDA 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call 

2. Approval of Minutes: December 17th, 2013 

3. Façade Applications 

a. Women & Teens Health Clinic 

b. Sara Stricklan Trust/V. Dante 

c. Law Office of Ivan Schertzer 

4. Update on CRA Loan 

5. Review & Approval of CRA Amended Budget 

6. Review & Approval of RMA Amended Contract  

7. Review & Approval 2013-14 CRA Implementation Plan 



8. Update on CRA Activities 

a. CRA Brokers’ Spring Event 

b. Miami Dade County Budget Approval 

c. CRA Sewer Project Update (163rd Street & NE 20th Avenue) 

9. Next CRA Board Meeting: March 27th, 2014 

10.Adjournment   



CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH
BOARDS AND COMMITTEES MEETING MINUTES

NAME OF BOARD/COUNCIL: COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS  
NAME OF PERSON PREPARING SUMMARY:  K. MCGUIRE, PROTOTYPE
NAMES OF STAFF, AND INVITED GUESTS PRESENT: CRA COORDINATOR RASHA CAMEAU, CITY 
MANAGER / CRA DIRECTOR ANA GARCIA, CITY ATTORNEY DARCEE SIEGEL, ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANT KEVIN CROWDER, CHRIS BROWN, SHARON MCCORMICK
BOARD MEMBERS: COMMISSIONER/CHAIR VALLEJO, COMMISSIONER DEFILLIPO, 
COMMISSIONER KRAMER, COMMISSIONER MARTELL, COMMISSIONER PIERRE, COMMISSIONER 
SMITH, COMMISSIONER SPIEGEL

TYPE OF MEETING: REGULAR MEETING DATE: December 17, 2013

MINUTES

AGENDA ITEM 1 - Call to Order / Roll call: 5:00 p.m.
Roll Call: Roll was taken at 5:21 p.m. It was noted a quorum was present.

AGENDA ITEM 2 – Approval of Minutes: August 27, 2013. A motion was made, and duly seconded, to approve 
the minutes of the August 27, 2013 meeting. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

AGENDA ITEM 3 – Approval of Minutes: October 24, 2013. A motion was made, and duly seconded, to 
approve the minutes of the October 24, 2013 meeting. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

AGENDA ITEM 4 – Review and Approval of the Economic Development Consultant Service Agreement: 
Redevelopment Management Associates (RMA). Ms. Cameau explained that since the previous year, Economic 
Development Consultant Kevin Crowder’s firm has merged with Redevelopment Management Associates (RMA).
The updated agreement also includes a new scope of services, which includes an additional $20,000 for branding, 
marketing, and discussion of the City’s and CRA’s identities as economic development issues. The contract total is
$45,000, with a monthly payment of $3750.

The Board members discussed the expense associated with branding and marketing, which will be provided by 
RMA. This expense includes 30 hours per month allocated to marketing, redevelopment, special event 
programming, and public/private partnership assistance. Mr. Crowder advised that the 2013-14 CRA 
Implementation Plan will support both City-wide and CRA-specific branding efforts and the City’s Strategic Plan. 
The CRA Implementation Plan is intended to aggressively publicize incentives and efforts within the CRA, 
including branding and marketing. City Manager Ana Garcia emphasized the importance of a seamless marketing 
effort between the CRA and the City as a whole in order to encourage economic development. 

The Board discussed amendments to the scope of services, such as the inclusion of some services in the scope rather 
than as potential additional expenses. 

AGENDA ITEM 5 – Review & Discussion of 2013-14 CRA Implementation Plan. Mr. Crowder showed the 
Board a PowerPoint presentation reviewing the CRA Implementation Plan, which seeks to proceed with a market-
driven effort to assist small business, create jobs, and attract development within the CRA. Areas of focus in 2013 
included the following:

Promote an identity that encourages business investment;
Attract new business and major capital investment;
Assist small businesses; and
Policy decisions. 

Mr. Crowder reviewed some of the previous year’s accomplishments, including adoption of a tenant improvement 
grant program and a tax increment financing (TIF) rebate, proposal of a mixed-use overlay zoning district, 
improvements on 163rd Street, and repeal of a waiting period attached to zoning changes, among others. These 



City of North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency
December 17, 2013
Page 2

changes have led to increased interest in the City by developers and investors. The addition of RMA’s services to 
the proposed 2014 contract will bring a focus on marketing, incentives, CRA planning, urban design, and other 
significant aspects of the implementation plan. 

The 2013-14 Implementation Plan will be presented to the Redevelopment Advisory Board in December and 
brought back to the CRA Board in January, including timelines, tasks, and budgets for each item included in the 
plan. Mr. Crowder briefly reviewed these items, which include a realistic five-year finance plan, development of an 
identity for the City and improvement of its image and reputation, public relations and marketing, and public realm 
improvements. He emphasized the need for a mixed-use zoning overlay district, and noted that the potential Tri-Rail 
station on 164th Street could act as a catalyst for additional redevelopment and investment within the City and the 
CRA. He concluded that ways to assist small businesses include working with Code Enforcement, parking and 
infrastructure issues, and the façade and tenant improvement programs, among others. 

Sharon McCormick of RMA addressed the issue of branding as it relates to economic development, citing examples 
of successful branding efforts the firm has achieved in other cities. She described this process as the creation of a 
sense of place, which can be achieved by research into the areas, outreach through social media, and special events 
and activities within the communities. Mr. Crowder reiterated that support of a mixed-use zoning overlay would be 
an important next step for the CRA and the City. 

The Board members discussed the presentation and the CRA Implementation Plan, including identification of how 
North Miami Beach might be successfully branded and the importance of bringing in new business. It was noted that 
the City’s canal is considered its best underused asset. Mr. Crowder emphasized the importance of partnership 
between the CRA and the City’s planning, community development, and capital improvement efforts, which will 
identify the infrastructure necessary to support new business and growth. Ms. Garcia noted that representatives of 
these City Departments also work with RMA, and confirmed that the City’s budget will comprehensively address 
these needs. 

The members also discussed a timeline for the CRA Implementation Plan and performance measures that will show 
the Plan’s progress. Mr. Crowder explained that a 12-month work plan, including specific tasks, assignments, and 
deadlines, will be developed into an implementation matrix, which will be presented to the Board on a monthly basis 
in 2014. Chris Brown of RMA cited examples of their success in the city of Oakland Park over the past two years, 
including the development and branding of that city’s culinary arts district and the attraction of related business and 
industry. 

Ms. Garcia added that it is important to invest in infrastructure and parking throughout the City as well as within the 
CRA in order to attract economic development. Improvements begun within the CRA are likely to spread 
throughout the City. Mr. Crowder noted that a great deal of the work done over the previous year has focused on 
driving new investment through the implementation of incentives, such as the TIF rebate program; next steps
include removing obstacles in the planning and zoning process. He cautioned that new development will not occur 
right away, and that a City-wide branding and strategic planning effort is very important in addition to branding and 
planning within the CRA. Ms. Garcia added that special events will draw attention to the foundation for 
improvements being laid within the City, which can attract investors to participate in the early stages of 
redevelopment. 

Commissioner Martell remarked that the combination of schools, parks, and water often contributes to urban 
development. She pointed out that these attributes exist on or near Hanford Boulevard, but have not been fully 
developed or connected as part of a city center in the past. Commissioner Spiegel noted that a Healthy Heart Walk is 
planned along the canal in February 2014, which could contribute to the branding of the area. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Smith, and duly seconded, to accept the contract with the [two amendments] 
as stated. In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Ms. Cameau noted that the CRA Implementation Plan will be reviewed further with the Redevelopment Advisory 
Board and will be presented to the CRA Board for approval in January 2014. Mr. Crowder added that the Board 
members will be able to review the Plan and reach out to him with further comments and suggestions prior to the 



City of North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency
December 17, 2013
Page 3

next meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – Review & Approval of Interior Renovation Application Guidelines. Ms. Cameau recalled 
that this tenant improvement grant program will provide a 50% match of the property owner’s tenant improvement 
allowance up to $10/sq. ft., with a maximum grant of $25,000. This program may be used in conjunction with the 
façade grant program, with the combined grant not to exceed $25,000; however, the CRA Board may increase this 
maximum amount at their discretion. The grant will be available to new businesses and to existing businesses that 
are expanding by more than 50%. Eligible improvements are those that would remain if a tenant moved out of the 
property. Should the property owner sell within four years of a project’s completion date, the grant must be repaid to 
the CRA. 

The Board members discussed the guidelines, including the possibility that consecutive tenants may wish to make 
improvements to a given property. It was clarified that the $25,000 maximum is per property rather than per tenant, 
although Mr. Crowder noted that this could be changed if the Board wished, as it could limit the improvement 
available to a strip center. Chair Vallejo emphasized that the Board would need discretion to make exceptions in 
special cases, such as more than one business existing on a given property; however, Commissioner Smith pointed 
out that owners have taken advantage of grant programs in the past to make improvements to multiple bays, and 
stated that the Board should be able to limit the amount granted to individual storefronts on the same property. City 
Attorney Darcee Siegel clarified that as the program is currently written, property owners may allocate their grant 
funds to multiple tenants.

A motion was made by Commissioner Spiegel, seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve the interior renovation 
application guidelines.

Ms. Siegel read the following into the record:
CRA Policy Resolution 2013-6: A resolution of the North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment 
Agency Board approving incentive guidelines for the interior improvement grant program, authorizes the 
CRA Executive Director to take any and all actions necessary to implement such guidelines in accordance 
with the Board’s intentions and approvals, and providing an effective date. 

In a voice vote, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

AGENDA ITEM 7 – Next CRA Board Meeting: January 23, 2014. It was noted that this meeting will convene at 
6 p.m.

AGENDA ITEM 8 – Adjournment. There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, the 
meeting was adjourned at 6:28 p.m.

































































6,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

 9,
36

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7,
27

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l C
os

t o
f P

ro
je

ct
6,

50
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Gr

an
t A

m
ou

nt
3,

25
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

A 
&

 J 
As

ph
al

t &
 P

av
er

s C
or

po
ra

tio
n

At
la

nt
ic

 S
ou

th
er

n 
&

 P
av

in
g

18
00

 A
sp

ha
lt

As
ph

al
t, 

se
al

 c
oa

t a
nd

 st
rip

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t

As
ph

al
t, 

se
al

 c
oa

t a
nd

 st
rip

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t

As
ph

al
t, 

se
al

 c
oa

t a
nd

 st
rip

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t

Pa
vi

ng
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r

N
or

th
 M

ia
m

i B
ea

ch
 C

RA
 F

aç
ad

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Li

st
 o

f B
on

a 
Fi

de
 B

id
s

N
am

e 
of

 B
us

in
es

s:
  W

om
en

 &
 T

ee
ns

 H
ea

lth
ca

re
 1

68
80

 N
E 

19
th

 A
ve

nu
e,

 N
M

B,
 F

l

Se
rv

ic
e

Co
st







 











































Aw
ni

ng
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r
Se

rv
ic

e
C

os
t

Fa
st

 A
w

ni
ng

s
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 a

nd
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
w

ni
ng

s
$4

,0
00

.0
0

Aw
ni

ng
s 

& 
Sh

ad
es

 C
o,

 In
c

M
an

uf
ac

tu
re

 a
nd

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

w
ni

ng
s

$4
,8

00
.0

0
Va

lro
se

 A
w

ni
ng

s
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 a

nd
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
w

ni
ng

s
$4

,8
36

.6
2

To
ta

l C
os

t o
f P

ro
je

ct
$4

,0
00

.0
0

R
eq

ue
st

ed
 G

ra
nt

 A
m

ou
nt

$2
,0

00
.0

0

N
or

th
 M

ia
m

i B
ea

ch
 C

R
A 

Fa
ça

de
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Li

st
 o

f B
on

a 
Fi

de
 B

id
s

N
am

e 
an

d 
Ty

pe
 o

f B
us

in
es

s:
 S

ar
ah

 S
tri

ck
la

n 
Tr

us
t 1

95
9 

N
E 

16
4t

h 
St

re
et



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 

















C
on

tr
ac

to
rs

Se
rv

ic
e

C
os

t

JN
Y 

R
em

od
el

in
g,

 In
c.

pa
in

tin
g 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g,

 s
id

ew
al

k/
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, A
D

A 
pa

rk
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

al
ls

, e
xt

er
io

r l
ig

ht
in

g,
 n

ew
 s

ig
n

$4
3,

80
0.

00

G
AI

A 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

pa
in

tin
g 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g,

 s
id

ew
al

k/
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, A
D

A 
pa

rk
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

al
ls

, e
xt

er
io

r l
ig

ht
in

g,
 n

ew
 s

ig
n,

 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g
$3

1,
90

0.
00

M
ira

n 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

LL
C

pa
in

tin
g 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g,

 s
id

ew
al

k/
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, A
D

A 
pa

rk
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

al
ls

, e
xt

er
io

r l
ig

ht
in

g,
 n

ew
 s

ig
n,

 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g
$3

8,
96

5.
00

To
ta

l C
os

t o
f P

ro
je

ct
R

eq
ue

st
ed

 G
ra

nt
 A

m
ou

nt
$1

5,
95

0.
00

N
or

th
 M

ia
m

i B
ea

ch
 C

R
A 

Fa
ça

de
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Li

st
 o

f B
on

a 
Fi

de
 B

id
s

N
am

e 
an

d 
Ty

pe
 o

f B
us

in
es

s:
 L

aw
 O

ffi
ce

 o
f I

va
n 

Sc
he

rtz
er

 1
62

11
 N

E 
18

th
 A

ve
nu

e









N
.A.

60

N
.A.

60

3.77
10

1.2
1.4

1.1
1.5

1.4
1.5

1.9
1.9

2.1
2.3

4.7
3.0

2.4
2.1

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.2

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

O
R
T
H

N
.E

.18
AVEN

U
E

LANDS
CAPE P

LAN  s
cale 1

/8"=1'-0"















 

 

  

 



 

 



 

 



C
on

tr
ac

to
rs

Se
rv

ic
e

C
os

t

JN
Y 

R
em

od
el

in
g,

 In
c.

pa
in

tin
g 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g,

 s
id

ew
al

k/
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, A
D

A 
pa

rk
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

al
ls

, e
xt

er
io

r l
ig

ht
in

g,
 n

ew
 s

ig
n

$4
3,

80
0.

00

G
AI

A 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

pa
in

tin
g 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g,

 s
id

ew
al

k/
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, A
D

A 
pa

rk
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

al
ls

, e
xt

er
io

r l
ig

ht
in

g,
 n

ew
 s

ig
n,

 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g
$3

1,
90

0.
00

M
ira

n 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

LL
C

pa
in

tin
g 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g,

 s
id

ew
al

k/
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, A
D

A 
pa

rk
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

al
ls

, e
xt

er
io

r l
ig

ht
in

g,
 n

ew
 s

ig
n,

 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g
$3

8,
96

5.
00

To
ta

l C
os

t o
f P

ro
je

ct
R

eq
ue

st
ed

 G
ra

nt
 A

m
ou

nt
$1

5,
95

0.
00

N
or

th
 M

ia
m

i B
ea

ch
 C

R
A 

Fa
ça

de
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Li

st
 o

f B
on

a 
Fi

de
 B

id
s

N
am

e 
an

d 
Ty

pe
 o

f B
us

in
es

s:
 L

aw
 O

ffi
ce

 o
f I

va
n 

Sc
he

rtz
er

 1
62

11
 N

E 
18

th
 A

ve
nu

e



Ci
ty

 o
f N

or
th

 M
ia

m
i B

ea
ch

 
FY

 2
01

4 
CR

A 
Lo

an
 

       
Ra

sh
a 

Ca
m

ea
u,

 C
RA

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 
An

a 
M

. G
ar

ci
a,

 C
RA

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Di

re
ct

or
 

Ja
ne

tt
e 

Sm
ith

, F
in

an
ce

 D
ire

ct
or

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
27

, 2
01

4 
1 



Te
rm

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
Ba

nk
 

•
De

bt
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ov
er

ag
e 

Ra
tio

: T
IF

 R
ev

en
ue

 m
us

t 
be

 a
t l

ea
st

 1
.5

0 
(1

50
%

) o
f d

eb
t. 

•
Cu

rr
en

tly
 T

IF
 R

ev
en

ue
 is

 a
t .

74
 (7

4%
) c

ov
er

ag
e.

 
•

In
te

re
st

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

16
 th

en
 re

su
m

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
l a

nd
 in

te
re

st
 p

ay
m

en
ts

. 
•

De
bt

 m
us

t b
e 

se
cu

re
d 

by
 p

ut
tin

g 
ba

la
nc

e 
in

  
es

cr
ow

 a
cc

ou
nt

 u
nt

il 
de

bt
 is

 p
ai

d,
 T

IF
 in

cr
ea

se
s t

o 
1.

50
 ra

tio
, o

r 
•

Ci
ty

 m
us

t s
ec

ur
e 

th
e 

de
bt

 w
ith

 n
on

 a
d 

va
lo

re
m

 
re

ve
nu

e.
 

•
N

o 
ot

he
r d

eb
t s

ha
ll 

be
 a

llo
w

ed
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 
Ba

nk
’s 

co
ns

en
t. 

2 



St
af

f’s
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

•
Pa

y 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

 d
eb

t $
3.

6 
m

ill
io

n 
fro

m
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

lo
an

 
fu

nd
s 

•
Ad

va
nt

ag
es

: 
–

Ba
la

nc
e 

of
 $

32
3,

73
4 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

gr
an

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

–
Th

e 
2nd

 lo
an

 o
f $

3 
m

ill
io

n 
is 

cu
rr

en
tly

 p
ai

d 
ou

t o
f T

IF
 

Re
ve

nu
e 

&
 e

xc
ee

ds
 th

e 
De

bt
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ov
er

ag
e 

Ra
tio

 
–

Co
un

ty
 a

gr
ee

s w
ith

 p
ay

in
g 

of
f t

he
 d

eb
t. 

  
•

Ch
al

le
ng

es
:  

–
 L

es
s f

un
ds

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r m
aj

or
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 g
ra

nt
 

re
qu

es
ts

 u
nt

il 
TI

F 
in

cr
ea

se
s o

r C
RA

 g
et

s a
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g.
 3 



FY
13

-1
4 

 B
ud

ge
t 

YT
D 

&
 P

en
di

ng
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

Pr
op

os
ed

 C
ha

ng
es

 
Fe

b.
 to

 S
ep

t. 
20

14
 

Sa
la

rie
s &

 F
rin

ge
s 

$8
0,

03
5 

$ 
51

,2
11

  
$6

,3
55

 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 F

ee
s:

  
RM

A 
$ 

45
,0

00
 

$1
5,

00
0 

 $
83

,3
33

 

Fa
ça

de
/I

nt
er

io
r 

Gr
an

ts
 

$1
30

,0
00

 
$0

 
$1

30
,0

00
 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

$4
7,

30
0 

$7
,3

30
 

 $
38

,4
80

 
De

bt
 S

er
vi

ce
 

$5
72

,0
72

 
$2

79
,5

45
 

$1
00

,1
73

 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 

$3
29

,3
47

 
$3

29
,3

47
 

 $
32

3,
73

4 

Pa
yo

ff 
De

bt
/E

sc
ro

w
 

$0
 

$0
 

$3
,6

72
,5

00
 

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

$3
,8

33
,2

55
 

$4
,3

54
,5

75
 

$0
 

To
ta

l E
xp

. 
$5

,0
37

,0
09

 
$4

,3
54

,5
75

 

4 



October 22, 2013 (updated October 24, 2013) (further updated 12/19/2013)

Ms. Janette Smith, CPA
Finance Director
City of North Miami Beach
17011 NE 19th Ave.
North Miami Beach, FL 33162-3100
Ph: 305-948-2930
Fax: 305-948-2996

RE: North Miami Beach CRA

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment 
Agency (CRA) violated its Debt Service Coverage Ratio covenant (as defined in Section 15 of 
the CRA Policy Resolution No. 2006-7 dated November 21, 2006). Bank of America is agreeable 
to a waiver of this covenant violation subject to modification of the existing credit agreements as 
follows:

Repayment Schedule: The Bank shall modify the $5,000,000 Taxable Redevelopment 
Revenue Note dated 1/24/2007 so that no principal payments shall be required on the note for 
eight quarters beginning 2/1/2014.  The CRA shall be required to make an advance principal 
payment of $555,552 upon the closing of the note modification which shall occur no later than 
01/30/2014. Quarterly principal payment of $69,444 shall resume on 2/1/2016.

Covenant to Budget and Appropriate: The City shall further secure the all of the CRA debt
(both the taxable and tax exempt notes held by Bank of America) with a covenant to budget and 
appropriate from legally available non ad valorem revenue.  The City shall agree to an anti-
dilution test which generally states that prior to the incurrence of additional debt from legally 
available non ad valorem revenues, legally available non ad valorem revenues less expenditures 
for essential governmental services (as determined by the most recent audited fiscal year end 
financial statements) must cover existing and projected maximum annual debt service on all debt 
secured by and or payable from such Revenues (including the debt subject to this modification) 
by a least 1.50x.  All security language must be acceptable to the Bank and its counsel.

Modify/Waive Debt Service Coverage Ratio: The definition of existing Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio shall be modified so that the ratio is calculated using Actual Annual Debt 
Service versus Maximum Annual Debt Service for the fiscal years ending 9/30/2014, 9/30/2015 
and 9/30/2016. Calculation of Actual Annual Debt Service shall be based on actual interest rates 
and will exclude the required $555,552 principal reduction.  Beginning in FY 2017, the Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio covenant shall revert back to MADSs as originally defined in the 
Resolution.  The Debt Service Coverage Ratio covenant shall be waived for the Fiscal Year 



2

2013 as it is anticipated that the City will violate the covenant for this fiscal year based on year to 
date actual payments.

Additional Indebtedness: No other debt shall be allowed without Bank’s written consent.

All other terms and conditions and provisions of the existing documents shall remain unchanged.  
This modification is subject to the preparation and execution of legal documents acceptable to 
the Bank and its counsel. The town shall pay the legal cost of the preparation and bank review of 
such documents.  

If you would like to move forward with proposed modification, please indicate you acceptance of 
this proposal by signing below.  Upon receipt of the signed proposal, the Bank shall engage legal 
counsel for preparation of the required loan modification documents.  If you have any questions, 
please contact me at the number or mail address below. 

Sincerely,

Holly Kuhlman
Senior Vice President/Senior Credit Products Officer
(239) 659-2275
Holly.kuhlman@baml.com

Accepted by:

Name:

Title:

Date:



CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2014-001

CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2014-001

A RESOLUTION OF THE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD 
MEMBERS OF THE NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AUTHORIZING PAYMENT 
OF THE CURRENT OUTSTANDING BALANCE OF 
REDEVELOPMENT REVENUE NOTE SERIES 2007B TO 
BANK OF AMERICA IN THE AMOUNT OF THREE 
MILLION SIX HUNDRED SEVENTY TWO THOUSAND 
FIVE HUNDRED AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($3,672,500.00); 
AUTHORIZING THE CRA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 
TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE SAID 
PAYMENT TO BANK OF AMERICA; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on November 21, 2006, the City of North Miami 
Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (the “CRA”) approved and adopted Policy 
Resolution 2006-7, which provided for, among other things, the issuance of a Redevelopment 
Revenue Note Series 2007B in the principal amount not to exceed Five Million and 00/100 
Dollars ($5,000,000.00) to finance the cost of land acquisition and redevelopment activities and 
projects within the CRA Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Redevelopment Revenue Note Series 2007B were 
previously deposited into the Project Account; and

WHEREAS, the CRA desires to pay the current outstanding balance of Redevelopment 
Revenue Note Series 2007B to Bank of America in the amount of Three Million Six Hundred 
Seventy Two Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($3,672,500.00).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD 
MEMBERS OF THE NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY:

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals in the whereas clauses are true and correct, and 
incorporated into this Resolution.

Section 2. Payment of Current Outstanding Balance of Revenue Note Series 
2007B. The payment of the current outstanding balance of Redevelopment Revenue Note Series 
2007B to Bank of America in the amount of Three Million Six Hundred Seventy Two Thousand 
Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($3,672,500.00) is hereby authorized.  

Section 3. Authority of Executive Director. The CRA Executive Director is hereby 
authorized to take all action necessary to effectuate said payment to Bank of America.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
approval.



CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2014-001

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a vote of the Board of the 
North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency, this 27th day of February, 2014.

ATTEST: NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

CITY CLERK GEORGE VALLEJO, CHAIRMAN

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

GRAY ROBINSON, P.A.
CRA ATTORNEY

SPONSORED BY:  ADMINISTRATION

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Vote:

Chairman George Vallejo (Yes) (No)
Board Member Anthony F. DeFillipo (Yes) (No)
Board Member Barbara Kramer (Yes) (No)
Board Member Marlen Martell (Yes) (No)
Board Member Frantz Pierre (Yes) (No)
Board Member Phyllis S. Smith (Yes) (No)
Board Member Beth E. Spiegel (Yes) (No)

# 496366 v1



#1
(FY 13-14 begins October 1, 2013)

FY 12-13 FY12-13 FY 13-14 FY 13-14
Adopted Actual Adopted Proposed

Revenues Budget Budget Budget Amendment
City Tax Increment Revenue 366,833 366,833 222,266 222,266
County Tax Increment Revenue 183,310 183,310 202,346 202,346
Additional City Funding
County Carryover
Carryover from prior year (cash & equiv.) 5,517,000 5,517,000 4,679,589 4,602,228
Loan Proceeds
Interest earnings 11,500 253 35,300 10,169
Revenue Total 6,078,643 6,067,396 5,139,501 5,037,009
Expenditures
Administrative Expenditures:
     Employee salary and fringe 31,606 31,606 17,164 13,190
     Audits 3,150 3,150 3,150 3,150
     Advertising and notices 500 293 1,000 293
     Travel 1,000 172 1,000 952
     Office equipment and furniture 0 0
     Other Admin. Exps (attach list) 4,750 4,750 8,614 8,835
(A) Subtotal Admin Expenses, % 41,006 39,971 30,928 26,420
     Reimbursement of City Advances 
     County Administrative Charge at 1.5% 2,750 2,750 3,035 3,035
(B) Subtot Adm Exp 43,756 42,721 33,963 29,455
Operating Expenditures:
     Employee salary and fringe 94,817 94,817 51,491 39,569
     Contractual services 25,875 25,875 45,000 80,000
     Printing and publishing 2,000 2,000 5,000 5,000
     Marketing 5,000 5,000 3,000 10,193
     Special events 12,000 12,000 0 0
     Legal services/court costs 24,000 15,000 21,500 21,500
     Redevelopment & Infrastructure 5,000,000 - 2,561,259 660,432
     Public Safety 185,843 185,843 0 0
     Capital Projects - Grants 30,000 11,000 130,000 130,000
     Hanford Blvd Maintenance 0 0 0
     NMB Blvd Maintenance 70,000 70,000 0 0
     Debt service payments (capital imp.) 209,867 209,867 206,670 203,622
     Debt service payments (property) 369,380 369,380 365,402 3,857,238
     Transfers out to others (attach list)
     Other Oper. Expenses (attach list)
(C) Subtotal Oper. Expenses 6,028,782 1,000,782 3,389,322 5,007,554
(D) Reserve/Contingency 6,105 4,679,589 1,716,216 0
Expenditure Total (B+C+D) 6,078,643 5,723,092 5,139,501 5,037,009

Cash Position (Rev-Exp)
FY 12-13 FY12-13 FY13-14 FY13-14
Adopted Actual Adopted Proposed

Projects: Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Amendments
 Redevelopment & Infrastructure 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,277,475 660,432
Capital Projects 30,000 11,000 130,000 130,000
Hanford Blvd Maintenance 0
NMB Blvd Maintenance 70,000 70,000 0 0
Total project dollars: 5,100,000 5,081,000 4,407,475 790,432

City of North Miami Beach
Community Redevelopment Agency  FY 2013-2014  Budget   



 
Page 1

CITY OF NORTH MIAMI 
BEACH

COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

FISCAL YEAR 
2013-2014

AMENDED BUDGET



  
Page 2

CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

NMBCRA FY2013-2014 AMENDED EXPENSES

2. Contractual Services/CRA Staff Transition, Administration & Management Consulting ($80,000)

NMBCRA has hired Redevelopment Management Associates LLC, (RMA) to provide staff transition, 
administration, management and consulting services for the NMBCRA, replacing the current CRA Coordinator.  
Scope of work is as follows:

1. Provide Administration and CRA Coordination services to the City of North Miami Beach CRA;
2. Provide general Marketing, Public Relations and Events Coordination assistance;
3. Provide Public Private Partnership support;
4. Provide continued consulting and staffing services as requested.

In order to make the best and most responsible short term use of TIF revenues, the North Miami Beach Community 

Redevelopment Agency Board has deemed it appropriate to pay down the $5,000,000 line of credit which was issued in 

2007 and carrying a balance of $3,672,500

8. Debt Service ($572,072)

Debt service for the $ 5,000,000 taxable line of credit

$3,672,500

$3,672,500



CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2014-002
 

CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2014-002

A RESOLUTION OF THE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD 
MEMBERS OF THE NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPROVING THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2013-2014 AMENDED BUDGET; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO TRANSMIT THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2013-2014 AMENDED BUDGET TO THE CITY OF
NORTH MIAMI BEACH AND MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; 
AUTHORIZING THE CRA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 
TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE 
APPROVAL PROCESS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 
AMENDED BUDGET WITH THE CITY OF NORTH MIAMI 
BEACH AND MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; AUTHORIZING 
APPROPRIATION OF CARRY FORWARD REVENUES AND 
INTEREST FROM FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 BUDGET; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on June 7, 2005, the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners adopted 
Resolution R-611-05 approving the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) among 
Miami-Dade County (“County”), the City of North Miami Beach (“City”), and the North Miami 
Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (“CRA”); and

WHEREAS, the Agreement requires that the CRA approve and adopt an annual budget, 
and transmit its annual budget to the City for approval prior to transmitting said budget to the 
County for approval; and

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 CRA Budget was previously approved by the 
CRA, the City and the County; and

WHEREAS, the CRA desires to amend the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 CRA Budget in 
certain respects including the payment of the current outstanding balance of Redevelopment 
Revenue Note Series 2007B to Bank of America in the amount of Three Million Six Hundred 
Seventy Two Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($3,672,500.00); and

WHEREAS, the amended Fiscal Year 2013-2014 CRA Budget is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” (the “Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Amended CRA Budget”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD 
MEMBERS OF THE NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY:



CRA POLICY RESOLUTION NO. 2014-002
 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals in the whereas clauses are true and correct, and 
incorporated into this Resolution.

Section 2. Approval and Adoption of Amended Budget. The Fiscal Year 2013-
2014 Amended CRA Budget attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted.

Section 3. Transmittal of Budget. The CRA Executive Director is hereby 
authorized to transmit the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Amended CRA Budget to the City and the 
County for review and approval.

Section 4. Authority of Executive Director. The CRA Executive Director is hereby 
authorized to take all action necessary to complete the approval process for the Fiscal Year 2013-
2014 Amended CRA Budget with the City and the County.

Section 5. Carry Forward. All revenues and interest carried forward from Fiscal 
Year 2012-13 shall be appropriated according to established guidelines and applicable law.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
approval.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by a vote of the Board of the 
North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency, this 27th day of February, 2014.

ATTEST: NORTH MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

CITY CLERK GEORGE VALLEJO, CHAIRMAN

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

GRAY ROBINSON, P.A.



3109 E. Atlantic Blvd. Suite B  Pompano Beach, FL  33062 www.rma.us.com

LETTER OF AGREEMENT

February 20, 2014

City of North Miami Beach CRA (“Client”)
Ana Garcia, Executive Director
City Hall, 17071 NE 19th Ave
North Miami Beach, FLf 33162

AND

RMA, LLC (“Consultant”) 
Christopher Brown, Principal
3109 East Atlantic Blvd, Suite B
Pompano Beach, Florida 33062
Contact: (954) 829-3508

Dear Ms. Garcia:

Redevelopment Management Associates LLC, (“Consultant”) is pleased to submit this Proposal 
for work related to staff transition, administration, management and consulting services to the 
City of North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (Client). If accepted, all services 
shall be performed as per this proposal.

Please review the proposed Scope of Services for content and compliance with your stated 
objectives; if there are revisions to the total content of the Scope we will be happy to discuss 
further and make any modifications as requested.

Background
The City of North Miami Beach requests a proposal for management and consulting services 
from a firm specialized in redevelopment management, planning and implementation.  The 
primary areas of focus in Year One of a contract are as follows:

1. Provide Administration and CRA Coordination services to the City of North Miami Beach 
CRA;

2. Provide general Marketing, Public Relations and Events Coordination assistance;
3. Provide Public Private Partnership support;
4. Provide continued consulting and staffing services as requested.



3109 E. Atlantic Blvd. Suite B  Pompano Beach, FL  33062 www.rma.us.com

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1.0 Administration and Project Coordination

Consultant shall assist the City or CRA on an ongoing basis on general issues related to the 
operation and organization of the CRA and will guide the Client through the redevelopment 
process.  

Consultant shall provide Client with materials related to general CRA governance and 
operations, redevelopment programs, projects, development scenarios, and any other aspects 
of anticipated redevelopment assistance and guidance on an as needed basis as requested by
the Client.

1.1. CRA Management (Ongoing services on an annual basis, not to exceed 28 hours 
per week from March 2014-September 2014)

1.1.1. Prepare and monitor the CRA’s annual budget and 5 year finance plan (which 
will be development in conjunction with the CRA Plan revisions)

1.1.2. Provide contact person for the general public
1.1.3. Manage day to day operations of the CRA office with a minimum of 20 hours per 

week of on-site staffing;
1.1.4. Coordinate negotiations, reviews, and administration of incentives;
1.1.5. Update and revise CRA collateral materials;
1.1.6. Develop and coordinate an interim program of promotion and events targeting 

real estate investors, developers, and brokers;
1.1.7. Develop a marketing implementation plan for the 2014/15 budget;
1.1.8. Provide monthly updates to the CRA Board;
1.1.9. Prepare staff reports, presentations and back up for CRA Board meetings;
1.1.10. Coordinate with City Staff and Consultants on CRA Capital Projects;
1.1.11. Attend One (1) CRA Board and One (1) Redevelopment Advisory Board meeting 

a month, and Board of County Commissioners Budget Meeting;
1.1.12. Prepare the CRA Annual Report;

Team Member: Project Management Services
Support Team: Economic Development, Planning Services, Marketing

Task 1.0. (Year One, March-September 2014) Fee for Services.............$65,000 ($9,285.71/mo)

2.0 Real Estate Development and Public Private Partnership Support
2.1. RMA has the expertise to negotiate complex deals
2.2. Analyze company financial information and proposed development pro forma 

statements to advise the City on their level of risk, project financing and, if any, level of 
contribution to meet a gap in financing;



3109 E. Atlantic Blvd. Suite B  Pompano Beach, FL  33062 www.rma.us.com

2.3. Assist the City of North Miami Beach CRA in negotiations of a Development Agreement;
2.4. Provide the City of North Miami Beach CRA with urban design and market expertise to 

negotiate the project specifications, architectural style, mix of uses, and advise on 
proposed development plans in terms of tenant attraction and community desires.

Team Members: RMA Principals, Economic Development, Urban Design

Task 3.0 will be billed on an hourly basis, not to exceed .............................................$10,000.00

3.0 Ongoing Consulting Services

Consultant will provide guidance to Client on redevelopment initiatives related to but not limited 
to housing, commercial, industrial and retail development, marketing, cultural programming, 
public relations and other areas of interest. 

Consultant shall assist in land development including but not limited to land acquisition services, 
land development services and other services related to real estate development. 

Consultant shall assist in rewriting of the land development regulations to encourage investment 
and redevelopment.

Consultant shall provide for attendance at additional CRA Board or City meetings as requested 
by Client.  The above additional services will be provided on an hourly basis.

4.0 Compensation
Hourly fees for this Agreement are as follows: 

Principals $195
Economic Development Director $185
Senior Redevelopment Associate $175
Sr. Project Manager $145
Sr. Engineer $140
Sr. Urban Designer $125
Planner $105
Marketing $100
Senior Project Coordinator $100
Special Events $  95
Project Coordinator $  85
Administrative Assistant $  65

This Agreement is effective upon execution and may be terminated by either party at any time.  
All rates, services and fees are based on an annual schedule effective as of the execution date 
of this agreement and shall be renegotiated on an as needed basis. 



3109 E. Atlantic Blvd. Suite B  Pompano Beach, FL  33062 www.rma.us.com

We look forward to working with you on this project. Please call me if you have additional
questions. 

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY:

Ana Garcia, Executive Director Christopher Brown, Principal
City of North Miami Beach CRA RMA, LLC



Pr
oj

ec
t

Pe
rs

on
s /

 T
ea

m
s R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

Ti
m

el
in

e/
De

ad
lin

e
Co

st
?

U
pd

at
e 

Pr
om

ot
io

na
l M

at
er

ia
l a

nd
 W

eb
sit

e
RM

A 
/ N

M
B 

Te
ch

 D
ep

t.
31

-M
ar

Id
en

tif
y 

Pa
rc

el
s F

or
 S

al
e 

or
 Jo

in
t V

en
tu

re
RM

A
31

-Ja
n

Co
or

di
na

te
 T

rI 
- R

ai
l M

ee
tin

g
RM

A/
Co

m
m

. D
ev

. D
ir.

28
-F

eb
Ev

al
ua

te
 C

on
cu

rr
en

cy
RM

A
30

-A
pr

Pr
om

ot
e 

In
ce

nt
iv

es
RM

A 
/ C

RA
 C

oo
rd

.
Th

ro
ug

h 
2/

28
/2

01
4

De
ve

lo
p 

Ev
en

ts
RM

A
Pl

an
ni

ng
 b

y 
2/

28
Ki

ck
of

f i
n 

Ap
ril

Ye
s -

 T
BD

Fi
ni

sh
 R

ef
in

an
ci

ng
 o

f L
oa

ns
N

M
B 

Fi
na

nc
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t

31
-M

ar
En

ha
nc

e 
/ E

xp
an

d 
N

ew
sle

tt
er

CR
A 

St
af

f
31

-M
ay

Im
pl

em
en

t M
ar

ke
tin

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
RM

A 
/ C

RA
 C

oo
rd

.
30

-Ju
n

De
ve

lo
p 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Pl
an

 / 
O

ut
lo

ok
RM

A 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 D
ep

t
30

-Ju
n

Id
en

tif
y 

Re
so

ur
ce

s t
o 

Ad
dr

es
s C

od
e/

Pa
rk

in
g

RM
A

30
-Ju

n
Ye

s -
 D

ur
in

g 
Bu

dg
et

Im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

Zo
ni

ng
 O

ve
rla

y
Co

m
m

. D
ev

. D
ir.

 
31

-D
ec

Im
pl

em
en

t W
ay

 F
in

di
ng

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

30
-S

ep
Ye

s -
 T

BD
Re

vi
ew

 +
 U

pd
at

e 
Pl

an
CR

A 
St

af
f

Th
ro

ug
h 

12
/3

1/
20

14

Co
ns

tr
uc

t P
la

n 
fo

r P
ub

lic
 R

ea
lm

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Co
m

m
. D

ev
. D

ir.
 

TB
D

Ye
s -

 T
BD

Bu
ild

 S
up

po
rt

 F
or

 Z
on

in
g

Co
un

ci
l

O
ng

oi
ng

Re
sp

on
siv

en
es

s O
ut

re
ac

h
CR

A 
Co

rd
. /

 C
om

m
. D

ev
. 

O
ng

oi
ng

Im
pr

ov
e 

De
v.

 P
ro

ce
ss

CM
GR

 / 
Co

m
m

. D
ev

. 
O

ng
oi

ng
Id

en
tif

y 
Is

su
es

 fo
r T

ar
ge

te
d 

Co
de

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t
CR

A 
Co

rd
. /

 R
AB

O
ng

oi
ng

W
or

k 
on

 J.
V.

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
RM

A
O

ng
oi

ng
Ad

dr
es

s M
ia

m
i-D

ad
e 

Ar
ea

 C
od

e 
Is

su
es

Co
de

/C
ou

nc
il

O
ng

oi
ng


